
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Mr Bill Badrock (Chairman)  

Parish Councillor Ronald Crawford  

Parish Councillor Canon David Felix  

Mr Robert Garner  

Mr Tony Luxton  

Councillor Philip Balmer Conservative 

Councillor Stan Parker Labour 

Councillor Linda Redhead Liberal Democrat 

Councillor Kevan Wainwright Labour 

Councillor Mike Wharton Labour 

 
 
 
Please contact   for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Wednesday, 11 November 2009 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Wednesday, 9 September 2009 at 3.00 
p.m. 
Committee Room 1, Runcorn Town Hall 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject 
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to 
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. STANDARDS FOR ENGLAND PAPER - SUSPENDING A 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE'S ASSESSMENT AND REVIEW 
FUNCTIONS 

 

1 - 5 

4. WORK PROGRAMME 
 

6 - 7 

5. JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE GUIDANCE 
 

8 - 43 

6. OTHER ACTION GUIDANCE 
 

44 - 62 

7. STANDARDS BOARD INFORMATION ROUND-UP 
 

63 - 70 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REPORT TO: Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 9th September 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Standards for England Paper – Suspending a 
 Standards Committee’s Assessment and 
 Review Functions 

 
WARDS: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To introduce Standards for England’s recent paper setting out the 

circumstances in which it may suspend a Standards Committee’s 
Assessment and Review Functions 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Report be noted. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Standards for England have recently issued a paper setting out the 

circumstances in which it may suspend Assessment Functions.  The 
powers were given to the Board by the Local Government Act 2000 as 
amended and the circumstances in which suspension may be made 
are set out in the new Standards Committee (Further Provisions) 
(England) Regulations 2009.  They are: 

 
� Standards Committee has failed to have regard to Standards for 

England guidance in respect of the exercise of functions 
� The Standards Committee has failed to comply with a direction 

issued by Standards for England in respect of the exercise of 
functions 

� The Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer has failed to 
carry out one or more of its functions in a reasonable time or a 
reasonable manner 

� The Authority or the Standards Committee has invited 
Standards for England to suspend the Assessment and Review 
functions.  

 
 The paper goes on to set out formal processes for bringing into 
effect a suspension of functions.  The document makes it clear that 
Standards for England only intend to use the power as a last resort.  
Suspension will usually only happen after a series of attempts to 
improve performance have failed. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



The document details the process for issuing a direction, 
amendments to the direction, assessment in the review processes 
during a suspension, and how the Standards for England will work 
with a suspended authority.  It is also them  deals with how a 
suspension may be revoked.  

 
Of course, the Monitoring Officer, the Standards Committee, and 
the Authority will do all it can to minimise the risk of such an 
important step ever needing to be taken in Halton.  However, it is 
felt  important to bring the power to the attention of the Committee. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATION 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLIATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and young people in Halton – None 
 
6.2 Employment and Learning Skills in Halton – None 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – None 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – None 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The Report of itself does not contain specific equality and diversity 

issues 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 There are no documents under the meaning of the Act. 
 

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



 
REPORT TO: Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 9th September 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Work Programme 

 
WARDS: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To update Members on the emerging work programme. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Report be noted and that Members comment on the emerging 

work programme. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Members will recall having received a report at the last meeting 

seeking items for a work plan for the municipal year. 
 
 Members have agreed to keep under review the Standards Committee 

(Further Provisions) Regulations 2009 which at that time were not as 
yet in force.  Those regulations have now been issued, and are 
reported elsewhere on this Agenda. 

 
 Members also wished to consider trends emerging from the quarterly 

and annual returns provided to the Standards Board by Councils 
across the country.  An update is contained within Bulletin 44 
elsewhere on the Agenda.   

 
 Members sought clarification on the indemnity position in so far as it 

relates to independent members on this committee.  The Monitoring 
Officer has been in touch with the insurance section and has been able 
to obtain confirmation that the policy cover does extend to include 
indemnity to members (including independent members) at the request 
of the Council.  The Indemnity only operates if the Council would have 
been entitled to indemnity if the claim had been made against it rather 
than the individual.  In the event that the Member is entitled to 
indemnity from another source, the other insurance cover should be 
utilised.  The other proviso is that the Council’s insurers have sole 
conduct and control of the claim.  The only potential gap that the 
insurers can think of in relation to Members is for pure legal expenses 
rather than the conventional liability cover. 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 6



 Members had asked for regular training on the Code of Conduct to 
continue, and it can be confirmed that a further session will take place 
on 20th October next.   

 
Members had also asked at the last meeting whether there was a 
qualified mediator available to the Council internally who could be used 
to provide mediation training.  It has also been suggested that a brain 
storming session would be beneficial with a qualified facilitator.  The 
Monitoring Officer agreed to discuss the suggestion with the Divisional 
Manager responsible for training.  He has been able to confirm that the 
Council does not have qualified mediators, and that an appropriate 
facilitator would have to be someone with a detailed knowledge of the 
standards regime. 

 
Members are invited to discuss the responses to queries raised at the 
next meeting, and make further comment.  
 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATION 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLIATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and young people in Halton – None 
 
6.2 Employment and Learning Skills in Halton – None 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – None 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – None 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 There are no such issues arising directly from this Report 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 There are no documents under the meaning of the Act. 
 

Page 7



REPORT TO: Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 9th September 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Joint Standards Committee Guidance 

 
WARDS: N/A 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Members of the publication of guidance from Standards for 

England on Joint Standards Committee 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Committee notes the Report. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Standards for England have recently published guidance on the 

establishment of Joint Standards Committees.  The guidance reflects 
the Standards Committee (Further Provisions) (England) Regulations 
2009.  These particular provisions are not mandatory.   

 
 Members will be aware that the Local Government Act 2000 provides 

that an authority must set up a Standards Committee and that the 
Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 set out the rules 
governing the size and composition of a Standards Committee. 

 
 The Standards Committee (Further Provisions) (England) Regulations 

2009 enable joint standards committees to carry out any of the 
functions of a standards committee. 

 
 It is considered that joint arrangements are likely to be most useful 

where additional flexibility to deal with cases is needed, or where 
resources are limited and sharing them would benefit the successful 
management of the standards framework in the area. 

 
 Standards for England have also identified a number of potential 

problems or issues with joint arrangements which are important to 
consider.  These would include the possibility that they become an 
overly bureaucratic and more complex process, leading to a lack of 
clarity for the general public, member resisistance to joint committees, 
differing resource implications for authorities within the same joint 
working arrangement, and loss of local ownership of standards and 
ethical issues. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 8



 It must be remembered that the Standards framework became fully 
localised on 8th May 2008 which reflected a general desire supported 
by the Standards Board, among those in the field, to be able to 
manage their own complaints.  The local standards framework also 
recognised that a knowledge of the local area and local situation can 
have a positive impact on finding the right solutions. 

 
 Standards for England recognise that authorities will have differing 

reasons for wanting or needing a joint Standards Committee and have 
therefore identified three model structures for joint committees which 
they feel offer the most practical ways of operating joint arrangements. 

 
 These are as follows:- 
 
 Model A a joint Standards Committee to receive written allegations 

  and requests for a review, and to decide what action to 
  take in relation to them  

 Model B a joint Standards Committee to carry out the functions in 
  model A along with receiving and considering final  
  investigation reports and conducting hearings,  
  making findings and imposing sanctions. 

 Model C A joint Standards Committee to carry out all of the  
  functions of the Standards Committee. 

 
 The guidance goes on to consider in detail the composition of joint 

Standards Committees.  The general rule is that a joint committee is 
composed in the same way as an ordinary standards committee but 
with the changes necessary to reflect the fact that it is a joint 
committee.  So, it must include at least one elected member of each 
authority involved in the joint arrangement, at least 25% of the 
members of the joint committee must be independent members, at 
least three people must attend a joint standards committee meeting, 
the Chair of the joint committee must always be an independent 
member. Also, executive member is permitted to be on the joint 
standards committee 

.  There must also be at least two representatives from Parish or Town 
Councils, and the Parish or Town Council Representative must be 
present on the committee at all times when Parish matters are being 
discussed.  There is no limit to the number of independent members. 

 
 The guidance then goes on to deal in detail with arrangements for 

establishing membership. 
 
 It must be remembered that authorities have a power and not a duty to 

establish joint standards committees, and this report is submitted for 
information at this stage. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 

Page 9



 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATION 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLIATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and young people in Halton – None 
 
6.2 Employment and Learning Skills in Halton – None 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – None 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – None 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The Report of itself does not contain specific equality and diversity 

issues 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 There are no documents under the meaning of the Act. 
 

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



REPORT TO: Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 9th September 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Other Action Guidance 
 
WARDS: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Members of the contents of the recent Standards for 

England Publication “Other Action Guidance”. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the report be noted 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Members may recall that at the last meeting of the Committee on 3rd 

June 2009, the Monitoring Officer reported that Standards for England 
had just issued guidance on Other Action in terms of the assessment of 
complaints.  

 
3.2 He indicated that a report would be brought to the next Meeting.   
 

Members will also recall having received the Standards Board’s 
guidance on local investigations and other action last year. 
         
Since then, there has been some uncertainty on the circumstances in 
when “Other Action” can be taken in the context of assessment. 
 
Members are aware that in considering a complaint, the assessment 
sub committee may take one of three options in dealing with a 
complaint that a Member has failed or may have failed to comply with 
the Code of Conduct.  It can decide to refer the complaint to the 
Monitoring Officer, refer it to the Standards Board, or take no action.   
 
If the assessment sub committee decides to refer the complaint to the 
Monitoring Officer, it can direct him or her to investigate the matter or, 
alternatively, it can direct him or her to take steps other than carrying 
out an investigation.  This is known as Other Action. 
 
The Standards Board’s key messages on Other Action are: 

 
� Complaints should not be referred for Other Action when 

an investigation is in the public interest, when an 

Agenda Item 6Page 44



allegation challenges the members honesty or integrity, 
or where if proven to be true, the alleged conduct would 
undoubtedly warrant a sanction. 

� A referral for Other Action closes the opportunity to 
investigate. 

� A decision to refer a complaint for Other Action makes no 
finding of fact, and the action decided on must not imply 
that the subject of the complaint has breached the Code 
of Conduct. 

� Assessment sub committees cannot direct the subject 
member or any other party to take action.  The direction 
is to the Monitoring Officer. 

� Although there is no formal route for dealing with a 
Member who refuses to comply with Other Action, failure 
to cooperate may amount to bringing the Authority into 
disrepute. 

� Generally, there are two indicators for Other Action.  The 
first is when there is evidence of poor understanding of 
the Code of Conduct and / or the Authority’s procedures.  
The second is when relationships within the Authority as 
a whole have broken down to such an extent it becomes 
very difficult to conduct the business of the Council. 

 
The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 explain that the 
steps a Standards Committee can direct a Monitoring Officer to take 
are: 
 

� Arranging for the Member to attend a training course. 
� Arranging for the Member and Complainant to engage 

in a process of conciliation. 
� Any other steps (not including an investigation) which 

appear appropriate.   
 

The attention of Members is drawn to detailed guidance from the 
Standards Board which appears at Appendix one of this Report. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 OTHE IMPLICATION 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLIATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton – None 
 
6.2 Employment and Learning Skills in Halton – None 
 

Page 45



6.3 A Healthy Halton – None 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – None 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 There are no such issues arising directly from this Report 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 There are no documents under the meaning of the Act. 

Page 46



 

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



REPORT TO: Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 9th September 2009 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Standards Board Information Round-up 

 
WARDS: N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To bring Members of the Committee up to date with the latest news 

from the Standards Board. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the Report be noted. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Since the last meeting of the Committee, the Standards Board has 

released bulletin 44 which is attached at Appendix one and can 
accessed by following link – 
http://www.standardsboard.gov.uk/publications/thebulletin  

 
The bulletin reports that the Standards Committee (Further Provisions) 
Regulations 2009 came into force on 15th June 2009.  Separate reports 
appear elsewhere on this Agenda dealing with the establishment of 
joint Standards Committees, and the powers of the Standard Board for 
England to suspend Standards Committees’ assessment and review 
functions. 
 
The bulletin also contains a section dealing with changes to the criteria 
for granting dispensation to Members who would otherwise be unable 
to take part in authority business because of a prejudicial interest.  An 
overview of the position and a link to the guidance are contained within 
the bulletin.  It is for the Standards Committee itself to decide what 
criteria they will apply when considering a request.  A request must be 
made by a Member in writing, and there is no right of appeal from the 
Standards Committee’s decision.  The Committee can decide on the 
nature and length of time of a dispensation, or although it cannot be 
longer than four years.   
 
The bulletin also contains articles on support for the Code of Conduct, 
the impact and effectiveness of the ethical frame work in local 
government, the impact of quarterly returns after one year of operation, 
and the revised guidance recently issued by the Local Government 
Association on Good Planning Practice. 

Agenda Item 7Page 63



 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATION 
 
5.1 None 
 
6.0 IMPLIATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and young people in Halton – None 
 
6.2 Employment and Learning Skills in Halton – None 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – None 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – None 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – None 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The Report of itself does not contain specific equality and diversity 

issues 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70


	Agenda
	3 Standards for England Paper - Suspending a Standards Committee's Assessment and Review Functions
	Standards Board for England

	4 Work Programme
	5 Joint Standards Committee Guidance
	Joint Standards Comm Guidance (1)
	Joint Standards Comm Guidance (2)

	6 Other Action Guidance
	Other Action Guidance

	7 Standards Board Information Round-up
	Bulletin 44


